
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 1 


 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2020 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
March 5, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Larry Spillane (arr. 6:35 p.m.) 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Rich Holmer 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Gregory Ramirez, IEDA 
      Doug Dove, Bartle Wells Associates 
      Abigail Seaman, Bartle Wells Associates 
      Rick Brandis, Brandis Tallman 
      Lizzie Foss, Brandis Tallman 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President (Vice President) Sukey 
Robb-Wilder at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Acting President Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski 
moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 6, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 







 2 


 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 20-08, Authorizing the 


Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement, the 
Issuance of a Refunding Bond Revising the Refunding Bond Previously Issued, 
and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.  The GM provided a brief overview of this 
item.   


 
** Director Spillane arrived at 6:35 p.m. 


 
Rick Brandis of Brandis Tallman made a presentation to the Board.  Comments were 
made by the GM.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Lizzie Foss of Brandis 
Tallman.  Director Schaap moved to approve Resolution 20-08, Authorizing the Execution 
and Delivery of a First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement, the Issuance of a 
Refunding Bond Revising the Refunding Bond Previously Issued, and Authorizing Certain 
Related Matters, pending any positive response to rate decrease request.  Director 
Lipinski seconded.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Director 
Schaap modified his motion to allow for the General Manager to sign if a rate change 
necessitated new paperwork.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-B. (6:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 20-09, Adopting Findings 


of the Bartle and Wells Associates 2020 Water Service Rate Study.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  Doug Dove of Bartle Wells 
Associates presented the Rate Study to the Board.  Extensive discussion ensued.  
Director Lipinski moved to adopt Resolution 20-09, Adopting Findings of the Bartle and 
Wells Associates 2020 Water Service Rate Study.  Director Spillane seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   


 
 


IX. CLOSED SESSION (7:54 p.m.) 
 
At 7:54 p.m. Acting President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 7:55 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:25 p.m. the meeting reconvened 
and the following action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
 District negotiator: Gregory Ramirez (IEDA) 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 Direction was given to staff. 


 
 
** At 8:25 p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8:35 p.m.  
 
 
V-C. (8;35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-10, Adopting Findings and 


Authorizing a Contract with Piazza Construction for Emergency Work to Repair 
Subsidence at the Lower Harrison Tank Site in Monte Rio, California for FY 2019-20 
in the Amount of $137,048.25 with Authorization of Change Orders up to $10,000.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were 
made by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Spillane 
moved to approve Resolution 20-10, Adopting Findings and Authorizing a Contract with 







 3 


Piazza Construction for Emergency Work to Repair Subsidence at the Lower Harrison 
Tank Site in Monte Rio, California for FY 2019-20 in the Amount of $137,048.25 with 
Authorization of Change Orders up to $10,000.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   


 
V-D. (8;52 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Draft Operating and Capital Budget.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was 
given to staff to prepare a Prop. 218 letter announcing a 5% rate increase and a two-tier 
rate structure based on the recommendations in the Rate Study, with the Budget 
Committed to review the letter.     


 
V-E. (9;21 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-11, Authorizing and Revoking 


Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Schaap moved to adopt Resolution 20-11, 
Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:28 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. In-House Construction Projects 
6. Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law 
7. Lower Russian River Community Action Group Governance Meeting 
9. SSWD Website Update 
10. 17448 River Lane Update 
11. Emergency Response Plan (ERP) Update 
12. Grant(s) Update 
13. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:47 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:47 p.m.) 
 
1. Draft Budget 
2. Labor Negotiations 
3. Water Rate Study 
4. Emergency Plan (ERP) 
 
 


IX. CLOSED SESSION (9:49 p.m.) 
 
After brief discussion it was unanimously agreed to remove the Closed Session item below from 
the Agenda: 
 







 4 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 
Title: General Manager 


. 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:49 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) *

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:28 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:47 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


 
April 2, 2020 Regular Meeting  


Join by phone 
1-408-418-9388   


Access Code: 628 029 189   
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 5, 2020 Board Meeting 







 2 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 


A. Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan – Coronavirus update (Est. time 
15 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Temporary waiver of all or part of the District’s Delinquency 


procedures (RH) (Est time 15 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-12, Declaring an Emergency and To 


Temporarily Authorize Increased Authority of the General Manager (Est. time 15 
min.)  


 
D. Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Draft Budget (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Amended Capital One refinancing, Agreement (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
F. Discuss/Action re Renewing Lease with Ferrellgas (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
  
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION  
 
 B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1)- Public Employee Performance 


Evaluation  
  Title: General Manager 
 


ADJOURN 







 3 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Response Plan; COVID-19 Pandemic Response
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Emergency Response 
Plan, specifically potential updates due to the Covid-19 Disaster. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A contagious disease emergency section should be added to the emergency response 
plan exampled by the Covid-19 Disaster we are currently under.  There are many 
considerations related to Covid-19 response including social distancing, eliminating 
foot traffic at our offices, monitoring staff for symptoms and dealing with each 
individual related situation, hygiene practices, leave issues, coordination with County 
EOC, testing, and potential changes to our Policies and Procedures.  Consideration 
for temporary expansion of the General Manager responsibilities is another issue.  
Remote meetings is another important consideration and the Governor has issued 
Executive Orders related to this issue.  
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Temporary Waiver of All or Part of the District’s Delinquency 
Procedures. 
   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Temporary Waiver of 
Delinquency Procedures and give direction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Covid-19 Disaster has created a need to view many policies and procedures of 
the District differently.  Among these policies and procedures is our Delinquency 
Procedure.  Attached are the detailed procedures.  We recommend that the Board 
give Staff flexibility in waiving fees and working with customers on payment plans as 
needed.   
 
Staff has discussed but cannot recommend a full waiver of shutoffs for non-payment.  
The District makes a minimum of four attempts – in writing, by phone and by posted 
notice – to notify delinquent customers that they need to pay their bill to avoid 
shutoff.  It is important that customers who are facing financial difficulties respond to 
these notifications.  Despite these efforts, each month there is always a customer or 
two who don’t pay until their service has been disconnected.  Also, some disconnected 
customers are never heard from again – they’ve moved on.  That said, the District’s 
level of disconnects is very low.  In calendar year 2019 just 0.37% -- that’s about 
1/3 of 1 percent – of all billings resulted in shut-off.   
 
 
 
 







3070  Payment of Bills 


 


 3070.10 Due Date on Bills:  All bills for water service shall be deemed due when 
rendered and shall become delinquent twenty-five (25) days after the date shown on the bill, except 
that governmental agencies shall become delinquent forty days after the date shown on the bill.   Bills 
will be due and become delinquent as stated in this section without regard to actual delivery.  
Consumers are required to ascertain their own indebtedness and billing status if bills are not received on 
schedule. 


 


 3070.20 Late Charge:  Late charges shall be assessed by the district where a customer 
fails to make payment within twenty-five (25) days of the date shown on the bill, or fails to complete an 
agreement for payment of a delinquent amount or where the customer fails to comply with the 
payment arrangements made with the district.  A late charge of five dollars ($5.00) or five percent of the 
past due balance, whichever is greater, for each bill that becomes delinquent shall be charged against 
the account.  Waiver of late charges for good cause shall be at the discretion of the general manager. 


 


 3070.30 Returned Checks:  A returned check charge in the amount of thirty dollars 
($30.00) will be assessed for each check returned from the bank unpaid.  District reserves the right to 
charge the maximum allowable by law which states "three times the face value of the check or one 
hundred dollars, whichever is smaller," and further reserves the right to require future payments to be 
made in cash or by money order.  The collection of three times the face value of the check may be 
applied to consumers who have over four returned checks in any one year period. 


 


 3070.40 Application of Payments:  All payments on bills shall be applied first to any late 
charges, second to any undisputed past due balance and third to current charges. 


 


  


 3070.50 Collection.  Delinquent water bills shall be referred to a collection agency ten 
(10) working days after termination of water service.  Accounts deemed to be uncollectable may be 
written off by the General Manager.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the District reserves 
the right to seek any other remedy available to the District, including liening property, instituting court 
action, etc. to collect delinquent bills. 


 


 3070.60 Assistance Programs.  The District may establish a program or programs of 
assistance for senior and/or disabled and/or low income consumers of the District.  Criteria for eligibility 
and the other terms of each program shall be established from time to time by resolution of the Board 
of Directors.  The terms of the programs may vary. 







3080  Termination of Water Service 


 


 3080.10 Termination of Water Service:  Water service, once established pursuant to 
Sections 3020.10 or 3020.100 shall be terminated only for the reasons and in the manner set forth in 
this section.  however, anyone using district water other than through such an established water service 
shall be subject to termination of such use forthwith and without notice.  Such illegal water use will 
result in administrative fees being incurred for the investigation and actual termination of the use, and 
these fees will be due and payable by the consumer within ten days of billing. 


 


 3080.20 Grounds for Termination:  The following shall be grounds for termination of a 
consumer's water service: 


 


  a. Nonpayment of any delinquent water bill, or other sum due the district from the 
consumer with respect to any service to the property served by the service proposed to be terminated. 


 


  b. Failure of the consumer or applicant to provide information for aid in the 
development of, or execute the necessary documents for water service. 


 


  c. Failure of the consumer to comply with any district  Ordinance, rule, regulation, 
order or decision with respect to the service proposed to be terminated. 


 


  d. Failure of the consumer to comply with any watershed protection agreement or 
other contract entered into as a condition of the granting of the service proposed to be terminated. 


 


  e. The District has reason to believe the property has been physically abandoned 
by the Customer or is in foreclosure. 


 


 3080.25 Grounds to Deny Transferring or Re-Opening an Account.  An account that is 
inactive or is likely to be terminated under 3080.20(e) above shall remain inactive (Closed) and not have 
water service restored until all past charges have been paid unless the new Customer agrees to have the 
unpaid balance transferred to their own water account.  This section shall only be applicable to 
properties that have transferred ownership to a bank or similar financial lending institution (i.e., 
foreclosure properties).  


 







 3080.30 Notice Procedures for Termination: The District must provide Notice prior to 
terminating a customer’s water service.  Except for termination pursuant to 3080.20(e) above, notice 
may not be sent until twenty-five (25) days after the date the District billing was mailed.  After such 
date, said Notice must be made at least 10 calendar days before water service is terminated, plus an 
additional five (5) calendar days if said Notice is mailed.  Mailed Notice shall be sent by first class mail to 
the customer, at the post office address furnished to the District by the customer.  Said Notice shall set 
forth the following: 


 


  a. The consumer’s name; address; account number, and address of property being 
served, 


 


  b. The location of the water service to be terminated, 


 


  c. The reasons for termination, including the amount of any delinquency; 


 


  d. The date on or after which water service will be terminated, or the date on or 
after which water service will be terminated if a specified payment, arrangement for payment, or 
specific corrective action is not made or compliance instituted with a specified district rule or regulation. 


 


  e. A statement, in case of termination for nonpayment of a residential water bill, 
that the customer may initiate a written protest or request an investigation concerning service or 
charges, or may request amortization or payment arrangements of any unpaid charges.  However, such 
request must be made prior to the date a Turn Off Notice is posted pursuant to Section 3080.40(b). 


 


  f. A statement in case of termination for nonpayment of a water bill, stating the 
telephone number of a district representative who can provide additional information or institute 
arrangements for payment or the availability of financial assistance, if applicable; 


 


  g. The telephone number of a representative of the district who will provide 
additional information  or institute arrangements for payment.   


 


 In the case of termination of service to a multi-unit residential structure, mobile home park or 
labor camp, where the owner, manager or employer is listed by the district as the consumer of record, 
or where the district furnishes service through a master meter, the district shall comply with the 
provisions of Government Code Section 60371 regarding the actual user of service. 







 


 3080.40 Termination Procedures: 


 


 a. Any residential customer who has timely initiated a written protest or requested an 
investigation or extension of the payment period shall be given an opportunity for review of the 
complaint, investigation or request by the district.  The district General Manager, or designated 
representative, shall review the matter within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of such request.  
Pending a decision by the General Manager, water service shall not be terminated. 


 


 b. If the district does not receive a timely written protest or request for investigation or 
amortization, or request for payment arrangements, and the reason for termination remains, the district 
shall place at each location scheduled for termination of service a Turn-Off Notice. prior to termination 
of service.  The Turn-Off Notice shall include the information set forth in Sections 3080.30 (a)-(d).  More 
than one Turn-Off Notice may be posted at a location if that location has more than one living unit. 


 


 c. The district may terminate service for non-payment any time after 60 days afer the date 
the bill was rendered.  However, the district may only terminate service for delinquency of payment in 
accordance with Section 3080.70. 


 


 d. A Turn-Off Notice service charge shall be assessed by the District when an employee is 
dispatched to place a notice at a customer’s service address for shut-off for non-payment.  A Turn-Off 
Notice service charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) shall be charged against the account.  Waiver of 
Turn-Off Notice service charges for good cause shall be at the discretion of the General Manager.  In the 
event more than one Turn-Off Notice is placed at a customer’s service an additional charge of fifteen 
dollars ($15.00) for each additional Turn-Off Notice shall be charged against the account. 


 





		Item V-B- Temporary Waiver of All or Part of the District's Delinquency Procedures

		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020



		Item V-B.1 Delinquency Procedures






 
Item V-C. 


 
Resolution 20-12, Declaring an Emergency and To 
Temporarily Authorize Increased Authority of the 


General Manager  
 


 







 


RESOLUTION NO. 20-12 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND TO TEMPORARILY AUTHORIZE 


INCREASED AUTHORITY OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California declared a State of 
Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of Novel Coronavirus 2019  
(“COVID-19”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-25-20 in further 
response to the spread of COVID-19, mandating compliance with state and local public health 
officials as pertains to measures to control the spread of COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Health Officer declared a public health emergency due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 


 
WHEREAS, the health, safety and welfare of Sweetwater Springs Water District 


("District") residents, businesses, visitors and staff are of utmost importance to the Board of 
Directors (“Board”), and additional future measures may be needed to protect the community; and 
 


WHEREAS, preparing for, responding to, mitigating, and recovering from the spread of 
COVID-19 may require the District to divert resources from normal day-to-day operations and it 
may impose extraordinary requirements on and expenses to the District; and 
 


WHEREAS, in the absence of Board action, strict compliance with certain District rules 
and ordinances could prevent, hinder, or delay appropriate actions to prevent and mitigate the 
effects of COVID-19; and 
 
 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, as follows: 
 


1. The Board of Directors declares a State of Emergency to exist in the District as a 
result of the threat of Novel Coronavirus 2019 (“COVID-19”). 


 
2. The General Manager may take all actions necessary, proper, and appropriate in 


his/her reasonable discretion to ensure the operation of the District, the safety of 
employees, and the safety of the public, including, but not limited to reasonable 
deviations from Board adopted Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, and Procedures.  
Any exercise of the General Manager’s authority pursuant to this Resolution shall 
be reported to the Board within a reasonably prudent timeframe.  


 







 


3. The authority vested in the General Manager by this resolution will terminate by 
action of the Board and/or a declaration by the Governor that the State of 
Emergency has ended and the County Health Officer that the Public Health 
Emergency has ended and the County Emergency Services Director that the Local 
Emergency has ended. 


 
 
  
 
***************************** 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 2, 2020, by the 
following vote. 
 
 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Larry Spillane        
 
 
 
                                                 
 
                                                                   
                                                                         Rich Holmer 
                                                                         President of the Board of Directors 
                                                             
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 





		Item V-C Cover page

		Item V-C Resolution 20-12 For General Manager Authority During Covid-19 Declared Disaster






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI-D  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2020-2021 
(FY20) Budget, including the District’s proposed water rates based on a 5% increase, 
and review of the Draft Budget, and provide direction to staff and the ad hoc Budget 
Committee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY21. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The ad hoc Budget Committee had two meetings prior to the April Board meeting to 
discuss the draft FY21 Budget which is being presented at this meeting (the line item 
draft Budget is attached as Exhibit A).  Among the issues we will have discussed (and 
shared in part with the Board at the March meeting): 
 
Proposed FY21 Water Rates 
 
At the March meeting the Board gave direction to proceed with a 5% increase for 
District water rates and the reduction from four rate tiers to two rate tiers.  This annual 
increase reflects the five-year plan for 5% annual rate increases recommended by 
Bartle and Wells, our rate consultant, to develop sustainable capital funding.  Table 2 
shows the proposed water rates and Table 3 shows a comparison of water bills with 
current and proposed rates for typical customers.  The District is on schedule to mail 
out Proposition 218 notices by April 16 to District property owners.   
 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (FY21) Budget 
 
The draft FY21 Budget detail is attached as Exhibit A.  Figures 1 and 2 show the relative 
total expenses and revenues projected for the Operating and Capital Budget.  The draft 
Budget has been discussed by the ad hoc Budget Subcommittee.  Staff have met 
several times to develop the appropriate line item amounts for the Operating section 
of the Budget.     
 
Assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 
 


• Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 
5%.    







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET   2 
April 2, 2021 
 


 


• Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and on mid-year water sales 
projections, thus the FY21 water usage revenues are estimated to increase by 
5% over the amount projected at the end of FY20.   


• Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted at a 3% increase as we are 
currently negotiating the next labor agreement.  With full-time GM and full-time 
Account Clerk, promotions to Field Manager and Crew Leader at lower salaries, 
and increases in other benefits generally, salaries decreased by $61,400 and 
benefits increased by $3,000. 
 


Highlights of the Draft FY21 Operating Budget include: 
 


• The 5% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately 
$170,000.    


• Planned FY 2021 CIP, Water Main Replacement of ~5,400’ at $1,326,000. 
• The District will make an additional payment of $500,000 toward its CalPERS 


unfunded actuarial liability. 
• We are purchasing a truck this year ($50,000).  
• The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $270,000.   


 
Uncertainties with the FY21 Budget include: 
 


• Covid-19 Pandemic will create many uncertainties for revenue collection and 
potential operations staffing shortages. 


 
With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between annual budget expenses 
are less meaningful because completely different capital projects are undertaken from 
year to year.  Capital revenues are similar from last year. Capital expenses are higher 
because we will be undertaking a major capital project.    
 
Total District debt was $10,498,513 as of the end of Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
USDA GO Bonds:   $3,026,026 
State Loans:  $   282,727 
Private Placement Loan: $1,603,760 
Cap One Bond:  $5,586,000 
 
The refinance and restructure of the Capital One 2013 Bond will free up ~125,000 
annually for year two through seven and show Net Present Value savings of over 
$235,000.00   Final closing was March 2020.    
 
 
 
 
 
 







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET   3 
April 2, 2021 
 


 


District Reserves 
 
The FY20 Budget lists the District Reserve Policy amounts approved in September 
2009:   
 


• Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to allow for prompt payment of District bills at the start of a 
fiscal year. 


• Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 
downturn or other economic crisis, and emergencies and disaster-related 
expenses. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of the annual debt payments to ensure funding 
is available to repay existing District debt. 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The draft Budget shows Beginning of Year above District Reserve Policy of 
$1,978,131 and $991,570 in Reserves Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.       
 
Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Proposition 218 requires that 45-day notice be given to all property owners in the area 
affected by a proposed rate increase.  Notice for proposed water rate increases will 
need to be mailed to all property owners by April 16, 2020.  The Notice will provide for 
an increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge of up to 5% for FY 2021 and will include the proposed rate schedules.   
 
 







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET   4 
April 2, 2021 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2020-2021 Budget Preparation, Revised 
Reviewed/Approved Capital Improvement 
Program  


     February 2020 


Introduce Budget Process January 3, 2020 


Budget Committee meetings February - March 
2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Recommendations on Water Rates; 
Rate Study Report and Recommendations to 
Board for Discussion/ Action 


March 5, 2020 


Proposition 218 Mailing for Water Rate 
Increase 


April 16, 2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action May 7, 2020 


Approve Budget 
Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates and Rate 
Study Recommendations 


June 4, 2020 


 


Table 2.  Proposed Bimonthly Water Rates


Base Rates CDRC 1 Base Rate + CDRC
$/account $/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2


$1.58 $3.77
All Users $68.51 $12.55 $81.06 (0-8) hcf 9+ hcf


2 DU's $106.19 $19.46 $125.65 (0-12.4) 12.5+
3 DU's $143.88 $26.34 $170.22 (0-16.8) 16.9+
4 DU's $181.56 $33.18 $214.74 (0-21.2) 21.3+


5/8" $68.51 $12.55 $81.06 (0-8) 9+
1" $171.31 $31.40 $202.71 (0-20) 21+
1 1/2" $341.51 $62.74 $404.25 (0-40) 41+
2" $548.10 $100.38 $648.48 (0-64) 65+


2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Volume Rates ($/hcf)


Single Family Residential


Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2


Commercial (by meter size)


 hcf = hundred cubic foot, 748 gallons  
1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET   5 
April 2, 2021 
 


 


 


 
 


 
 


Median High Median High Median High
Water Use (hcf) 7 22 12 32 15 82
Water Bill (Current) $87.70 $134.20 $137.66 $198.56 $110.20 $408.20
Water Bill (Proposed) $92.09 $146.50 $145.18 $219.16 $120.08 $372.97
Bimonthly Difference $4.39 $12.30 $7.52 $20.60 $9.88 -$35.23
% Increase 5% 9% 5% 10% 9% -9%


 Table 3. Proposed 5% Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class 
FY 2020-21


Single Family Residential
Multi Family Residential


 (2 units)
Commercial
(5/8" Meter)







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET   6 
April 2, 2021 
 


 


 
 







1 Exhibit A


2 DRAFT FY 2020-21 OPERATING BUDGET 


3
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


4 REVENUE
5 OPERATING REVENUE


6 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


7 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charg 278,867 296,383              301,498              316,573 20,190           5% rate increase based on projected


8 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,585,609 1,644,824           1,646,066           1,728,369 83,545           5% rate increase based on projected


9 647,749 633,846              667,181              700,541 66,695           Flat sales, 5% increase based on projected


10 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,512,225          2,575,053           2,614,745           2,745,483 170,430         As Calculated


11 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,512,225 2,575,053 2,614,745 2,745,483 170,430         As Calculated


12 NON-OPERATING REVENUE


13 4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                         -                     


14 4448 · Policy Reserve Loan proceeds 0 -                         500,000              500,000              500,000         


15 1700 · Interest 10,900 8,000                 18,000                16,000                8,000             


16 3600 · Construction New Services 6,978 7,000                 7,000                 7,000                 


17 3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 10,384 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                 


18 4032 · Rent 105,717 105,000              105,000              110,810              5,810             Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
AT&T $7874/mo = $94488


19 4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,482 1,500                 5,800                 1,500                 -                     
USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


20 4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,745 -                         2,995                 -                         -                     SCWA contract over.


21 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 140,206 124,500 641,795 638,310 513,810         


22 Total Income 2,652,431 2,699,553 3,256,540 3,383,793 684,240         ** (500,000 as revenue proceeds)


23 EXPENSES
24 OPERATING EXPENSES


25 SALARY & BENEFITS


26 Salary


27 5910 · Wages 835,923 903,046 850,000              835,000              (68,046)          As Calculated @ 3% Increase


28 5912 · Overtime 36,645 34,307 35,000                37,000                2,693             As Calculated


29 5916 · On-Call Pay 35,788 34,950 37,000                37,000                2,050             As Calculated


30 5918 · Extra help - Contrac 37,047 34,100 37,344                36,000                1,900             As Calculated


31 945,403 1,006,403 959,344 945,000 (61,403)          


32 Benefits


33 5500 · Flex Spending -2,643 0 0 0 -                     


34 5920 · Retirement net EE s


67,856 95,927 70,000 87,000 (8,927)            


JK: ER Rates: 
  2%@55: 10.484%; 2%@62: 7.732%
Est bi-weekly total: $5,625 (assuming 5% salary 
increase)
Est Ee share: $2,282.  NET $3343 = $86,918


35 5920.4 · Retirement UL 125,451 55,451 55,451 34,854 (20,597)          JK:  Mandatory UL $34854.  


36 5920.5 · Retirement UL 0 64,549 500,000 500,000 435,451         JK:  (Loaned from Policy Reserves)


37 5922 · Payroll Taxes - Emp  14,603 16,761 13,500 16,000 (761)               As Calculated


38 5930 · Health/Dental/Visio  185,364 237,000 208,000 240,000              3,000             Health Insurance Up Due to Employee Choice


39 5931 · Retiree health
7,842 7,680 8,800 9,800 2,120             


Includes contribution to CERBT of $3000; Per JK cost 
per retiree 2020 $139.75; 2020 $143
Total retirees: 4


40 5940 · Workers Comp Insu 27,297 37,000 33,400 38,000 1,000             Per JK, still waiting for 2020-21 EMOD


41 5941 · Life Insurance (GM 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000             Per EF contract.


42 425,770 514,368 890,151 926,654 412,286         


43 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,371,173 1,520,771 1,849,495 1,871,654 350,883         


44 SERVICES & SUPPLIES


45 Communications  


46
6040-I · Internet service 2,354 2,350                 2,350                 2,700                 350                


Comcast -$86.13/month: $1034
GotoMyPC $88/mo = $1056
Sonic.net $47.90/mo = $575


47
6040-C · Cell Phones 4,058 4,900                 4,200                 4,600                 (300)               


Verizon $35/mo: $420, GM-$600
Misc parts/holders: $200
Cell phone reimburse $275/mo - $3300


48
6040-P · Radios 453 680                    620                    200                    (480)               Misc. parts/batteries: $200


COMBINE THIS CATEGORY WITH CELL PHONES?


49
6040-T · Telephones 22,512 22,900                24,000                24,000                1,100             


Ans. Service: $2500
AT&T Phones: $1,400/mo: $16,800
Mitel Phones: $360/mo=$4,320


50 29,377 30,830 31,170 31,500 670                


51 Insurances


52 6101 · Liability & Auto Ins 40,948 44,000                45,214                46,000                2,000             


53 40,948 44,000 45,214 46,000 2,000             


Sweetwater Springs Water District                                                      
DRAFT 2019-2020 Operating and Capital Budget                   


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 
+ Other


Total Salary


Total Benefits


Total Communications


Total Insurances







54
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


55 Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


56 6140 · Vehicle Maintenanc 18,193 21,000                15,500                21,000                -                     Tires for Dump Truck, Backhoe


57


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,701 6,000                 5,000                 6,000                 -                     


Alarm System - $145/qtr.=$580
SR Computers - $195/mo = $2340/year 
Copy mach. maint - 1400/yr
Call One - $1000/yr
Landscaping - $300/yr
Misc / Other - $250


58 23,894 27,000 20,500 27,000 -                     


59 Maint/Repair - Facilities -                     


60
6085 · Janitorial Services 8,420 8,800                 8,800                 9,000                 200                


Maria Reyes (office Janitorial): $125/mo  = $1500
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $305/mo = $3660
Recology Garbage $2040
Sewer - GVTP ($1700)


61 5,812 5,000                 6,000                 5,000                 -                     


62 32,073 50,000                250,000              50,000                -                     As Calculated


63 64,466 50,000                70,000                75,000                25,000           well # 4 Monte Rio & #4 El Bonita rehab 


64 6143 · Generator Maintena 1,122 1,000                 1,000                 4,000                 3,000             PG&E Planned Outages


65 111,893 114,800 335,800 143,000 28,200           


66 Miscellaneous Expenses  


67


6280 · Memberships 12,306 12,020                12,000                11,000                (1,020)            


USA $700
AWWA $420
CSDA $6800
CalWEP: NOT INCLUDED THIS YEAR
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


68 6303 · Claims 386 1,500                 500                    1,500                 -                     Estimate


69


6593 · Governmental Fees 17,128 15,000                18,000                19,000                4,000             


Elections costs: $0
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $300
LAFCO $6,900
Hazmat $1300
Operator license fees $1000
System fees $9000


70 29,820 28,520 30,500 31,500 2,980             


71 Office Expense -                     


72
6410 · Postage 12,303 17,000                18,000                19,000                2,000             


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.50 X 12 months) = $12,000
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .50 = $2,000
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .50 = $1,800
Other mail 


73


6430 · Printing Expense 8,467 7,500                 7,500                 8,000                 500                


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $800
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts/folding (CCR, Flood, Rate Incr. $1000)
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks/Receipt books $700


74


6461 · Office Supplies 7,518 6,000                 5,500                 6,000                 -                     


Supplies $4000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250
Furniture $500


75


6800 · Subscriptions/Lega  861 1,100                 1,100                 1,100                 -                     


Press Democrat $475
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $95


76


6890 · Computers/Softwar 2,636 2,500                 1,700                 2,500                 -                     


Antivirus softsware $60
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $500
Workstation upgrades - $2000 (2)
Office 365 upagrade: $500


77 31,785 34,100 33,800 36,600                2,500             


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6100 · SCADA System
6180 · Distribution 
System Repairs
6235 · Treatment 
Sys/Well Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Office Expense







78
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


79 Operating Supplies


80 6300 · Chemicals 14,377 20,000                18,500 20,000                -                     No KmNO4, more dechlor for flushing


81 6880 · Tools and Equipme 2,960 7,000                 5,000 7,000 -                     
Generator $1,300 Mini Jack hammer $450. Chain saw 
$400.


82 6881 · Safety Equipment -232 1,200                 2,200 2,000                 800                Work Signs


83 17,105 28,200 25,700 29,000 800                


84 Professional Services


85 6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 13,063 12,500                13,500                12,500                -                     


86


6570 · Consultant Fees 45,380 58,000                45,000                52,000                (6,000)            


IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
SR Computers/Chris Meyers (non-maintenance work) 
$1000
SR Computers/Kim (website; Office 365 upgrade) 
$1500
Grants Consultant $30,000


87 6610 · Legal 12,718 20,000                25,000                30,000                10,000           Recent Costs


88


6630 · Audit/Accounting 42,824 42,000                42,000                35,000                (7,000)            


ADP $65/2 weeks = $1300
W-2s = $80
Authorize.net $1000
Auditor $8,500
TSYS: $17000
E-check fees = $2100
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $800


89 113,985 132,500 125,500 129,500 (3,000)            


90 Rents & Leases & Loans


91
6820 · Equipment 1,235 3,300                 3,300                 3,300                 -                     Postage machine $1300


Action rents: $2000


92 6840 · Building & Warehou
29,790 29,790                29,790                32,000                2,210             


Rent: $2,650/mo = 32,000 (est based on new lease in  
May 2020


93 Policy Reserve Loan
0 -                         -                         135,000              135,000         $500,000 borrowed FY 2019-20; $500,000 borrowed FY 


2020-21.  Year 1 of 7 years payback $135,000 annually.


94 31,025 33,090 33,090 170,300 137,210         


95 Transportation & Travel  


96
7120 · Seminars & related 1,450 3,650                 2,650                 5,000                 1,350             


JK - $250, EF-$1,000
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500


97 7201 · Vehicle Gas 23,553 20,000                24,000                24,000                4,000             


98 7300 · Travel Reimbursem 12,781 7,400                 8,000                 7,000                 (400)               EF $500/mo = $6000
CMH/NK/JK $80/mo = $960


99 37,784 31,050 34,650 36,000 4,950             


100 Uniforms


101 6021.1 · Boots 1,249 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                 -                     $225 X 7 = $1450


102 6021.3 · T-shirts 1,636 1,800                 1,700                 1,800                 -                     


103 6021.4 · Jackets 0 240                    240                    240                    -                     2 jackets


104 2,885 3,540 3,440 3,540 -                     


105 Utilities


106 7320 · Electricity 102,809 110,000              110,000 115,000              5,000             JK: anticipating PGE rate increase


107 7321 · Propane 3,178 3,000                 3,000 3,000                 -                     


108 105,987 113,000 113,000 118,000 5,000             


109 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 576,488 620,630 832,364 801,940 181,310         


110 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,947,661 2,141,401 2,681,859 2,673,594 532,193         ** 500,000 Retirement UL


111 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $704,770 $558,152 $574,681 $710,199 152,047$       


112 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


113 8517 · Field/Office equipment 0 -                         0 9,500                 JK: New copier $8000 (est.). Alarm $1,500


114 8573 · Vehicles 45,037 -                         50,000                50,000           New F-350 truck, utility bed, lift gate


115 8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites -531 24,000                15,000 24,000                -                     Harrison Rd roof $12,000. Park Ave roof & liner 
$12,000.


116 8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 -                         -                     


117 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 44,506 24,000 15,000 83,500 59,500           


118 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


119 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 288,172 296,383 301,498 316,573 20,190           


120 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 0 -                         -                     


121 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 210,000 190,000 215,000 270,000              80,000           


122 8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000                15,000 15,000                -                     


123 8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000                25,000 25,000                -                     


124 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 538,172 526,383 556,498 626,573 100,190         


125 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 122,092 7,769 3,183 126 (7,643)            


126


Total Utilities


Total Operating Supplies


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms







127
128 DRAFT FY 2020-21 CAPITAL BUDGET 


129   
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


130 1002 - Construction Flat Charges 13,107 27,000                27,000                27,000                -                     As Calculated


131 1001 - CY Direct Charges 718,394 710,000              710,000              710,000              -                     As Calculated


132 1061 - PY Direct Charges 26,651 40,000                40,000                40,000                -                     As Calculated


133 1700 - Interest 39,902 25,000                25,000                25,000                -                     As Calculated


134 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (In-House Constr.) 25,000 25,000                25,000                25,000                -                     As Calculated


135 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (CDR) 288,172 296,383              301,498              316,573              20,190           As Calculated


136 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (Surplus) 210,000 190,000              215,000              270,000              80,000           


137 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (USDA bond pymts at WA) 132,500 -                         -                         -                         -                     


138 USDA 2018 Bond proceeds 1,535,000  0 0
139 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,988,726 1,313,383 1,343,498 1,413,573 100,190         


140
141 EXPENSES
142 DEBT PAYMENTS


143 Gen. Obligation Bonds Principal 26,981 52,622                52,622                54,278                1,656              


144 Cap One Revenue Bond Principal 343,000 359,000              359,000              368,000              9,000             


145 State Loan Principal 131,346 135,235              135,235              139,298              4,063              
146 Private Placement Loan Principal 150,901 165,570              162,470              167,650              2,079             


147 Interest Expense 360,836 343,366              343,365              319,908              (23,458)          


148 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,013,065 1,055,794 1,052,693 1,049,134 (6,660)            


149
150 2018 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 106,691 -                     -                     


151 2018 CIP Construction 957,228 -                     -                     


152 2019 CIP 103,408 -                     62,472                -                         -                     Final Costs of Monte Rio ATEC filters


153 1,326,000           1,326,000      


154 In-House Construction Projects 67,908 25,000                25,000                25,000


155 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES 1,235,235          25,000                87,472                1,351,000           1,326,000      


156 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,248,299 1,080,794 1,140,164 2,400,134 1,319,340      


157 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 740,427 232,589 203,334 (986,561) (1,219,150)     


158
159 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


160 Beg Funds above District Reserve Policy 1,759,797           1,759,797          1,963,131          -                                                                               
162 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,759,797          1,992,386           1,963,131           976,570              


163 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 746,732             936,592              910,438              (72,564)              


164 Net Capital Funding 270,054 205,589 238,805 312,439


Sum of the operating budget surplus, annual assessments, 
CIRF, CDRC, and capital interest minus total debt 
payments.


2021 CIP







 
Proposition 218 Notice to Customers and Property 


Owners of Record:  
Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water Rate 


Increases 
 


 
Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article XII(D) of the California Constitution, that Sweetwater Springs Water 
District is proposing to increase its rates for water service. The Board will conduct a public hearing on this 
matter, which will be held on:  
 
 Date: June 4, 2020 
 Time: 6:30 PM  
 Place: 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
The public hearing will review the proposed water rate increase and other related changes to water fees and 
charges. More information is provided below.  
 
Water System Overview 
Sweetwater Springs Water District operates and maintains a public 
water enterprise system that supplies safe, potable drinking water to 
3,800 customers through two separate water supply and distribution 
systems. In total, the District operates and maintains five wells, 26 
storage tanks, five pressure zones, and a filtration plant. District services 
include maintenance and repair of the water system up to the water 
meter, weekly water quality testing, meter reading, small and large-scale 
capital improvements, and installation of new services.  


The District is aggressively investing in capital improvements, as well as 
infrastructure repair and replacement. We recently completed $1.5 
million in capital improvement projects and successfully refinanced a 
water revenue bond, achieving over $650,000 in savings over the next 
five years. 
Why is an increase in rates necessary?  


The proposed increases to rates and charges, as set forth in 
Resolution 19-06 and summarized below, will be used to pay for 
the increasing need for capital improvements to the water system 
as well as debt service and operations costs. 


The current capital improvement program addresses the need to 
bring District capital facilities to a standard level of adequacy and, 
once that is done, a sustainable capital improvement program will 
be needed to keep District facilities at an adequate level.  The 
District faces an average of $750,000 per year for ongoing capital 
improvements necessary to maintain and upgrade existing 
facilities, including mainlines, tanks, and wells. 


The proposed water rate increase follows the water rate study performed by Bartle Wells Associates and 
completed in March 2020.  The study recommends restructuring water rates and increasing rate revenue 
annually by up to 5% in order to meet rising operations, debt, and capital improvement expenses. During the 
proposed 5-year rate schedule, budgets and spending needs will be analyzed on an annual basis to determine 
what level of increase, if any, is needed to meet expense requirements. The analysis done this year shows that 
an overall 5% rate revenue increase and a restructure of the current tiered volume rates is needed. 


ATEC Filter System, FY 2019 CIP 







 
Proposed Bimonthly Water Rates 
 


    Base Rates CDRC 1 Volume Rates ($/hcf) 
    $/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2 
Single Family Residential     $1.58 $3.77 
  All Users $68.51  $12.55  (0-8) hcf 9+ hcf 
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2         
  2 DU's $106.19  $19.46  (0-12.4) 12.5+ 
  3 DU's $143.88  $26.34  (0-16.8) 16.9+ 
  4 DU's $181.56  $33.18  (0-21.2) 21.3+ 
Commercial (by meter size)         
  5/8" $68.51  $12.55  (0-8) 9+ 
  1"  $171.31  $31.40  (0-20) 21+ 
  1 1/2" $341.51  $62.74  (0-40) 41+ 
  2" $548.10  $100.38  (0-64) 65+ 
 hcf = hundred cubic foot, 748 gallons   
1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge       
2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier 


 
How will this impact a typical Single-Family bill?  
Sweetwater Springs utility rates are among the lowest in the area and will continue to be low with the proposed 
rate increases. Currently, a typical single family using 10 hcf of water bimonthly has a bill of $95.20. The 
proposed rates will increase the typical bill by 5%, or $6.01 bimonthly, for 10 hcf of water use. Greater water 
conservation will result in lower water bills.  
 
More Information Available Prior to the Hearing: 
More information on the proposed water rates, including the draft Water Rate Study, is available at the District 
office at 17081 Highway 116, Suite B, Guerneville, California.  This information will also be posted on the 
District’s website, www.sweetwatersprings.com.  In addition, District staff can be contacted at (707) 869-4000 
to answer any questions you may have regarding the rate increases.    
 
Rate Increase Approval Process 
Sweetwater Springs Water District will hold a public hearing at the Board meeting scheduled June 4, 2020 at 
6:30pm at the District offices, 17081 Hwy. 116 Ste. B Guerneville, CA 95446. 
 
Any interested person, including persons owning or residing at property served by the District water system, 
may present verbal or written comment to the Board on the proposed rates. If you are a property owner or the 
person responsible for paying for water service, you may submit a written protest of the proposed rate 
increases either prior to or during the Public Hearing on June 4, 2020.  Only one protest per parcel will be 
counted. The rate increases will take effect unless protests are received from more than 50% of property 
parcels in the District. 
 
At the Public Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider all written protests that are submitted during the 
public hearing as well as written protests that have been received. Written protests must indicate the property 
address and the name of the owner of record of the property and be signed by the person submitting the 
protest.  Written protests may also be delivered to the District office no later than the close of the public 
hearing, as noticed above, or said protests may be sent by 1st-class mail, postage prepaid, to: 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA  95446 


 
Mailed protests must be received by the District no later than the date of the public hearing.  Any protests 
received after the close of the public hearing will not be counted. 





		Item V-D - FY 2020-2021 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020



		Item V-D.1 Attachment A

		Sheet1



		Item V-D.2 SSWD Proposition 218 Notice

		Proposition 218 Notice to Customers and Property Owners of Record:








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  2020 Amendment to the Bond Issuance Agreement for the 
Improvement Area No. 1 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a First 
Amendment to the Bond Issuance Agreement, the Issuance of a Refunding Bond 
Revisiting the Refunding Bond Previously Issued, and Authorizing Certain Related 
Matters. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Amending the existing 2013 Loan with Capital One will save 
the District approximately $49,000 in FYE 2021, $125,000 in FYEs 2022 through 
2027, $33,000 in FYEs 2028 through 2032. The District will incur a cost of 
$426,000 in FYEs 2033 and 2034 (final maturity). Total savings to the District are 
about $90,000 with net present value savings of $236,000 or 3.85%. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In January 2020, District staff met with Brandis Tallman, the placement agent on 
the Improvement District No. 1 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond (the 
“Bond”), to discuss refinancing / restructuring options for the Bond as a way to 
lower the District’s debt service and provide cash flow savings. 
 
Given that the Bond is not callable until September 1, 2021, the District cannot 
refund today with a tax-exempt financing. Post recent tax reform, no tax-exempt 
advance refinancings are allowed. Therefore, the District has two options: (1) 
refund the Bond on a taxable basis; or (2) amend the bond with Capital One.  
 
Regarding a taxable refunding, Brandis Tallman canvassed direct placement 
lenders for taxable interest rates. While taxable rates at historical lows, they are 
not low enough to offset the long escrow cost and the 2% prepayment penalty 
that exists on the Bond. Brandis Tallman also reached out to Capital One to 
explore restructuring options. Capital One provided three options: (1) same debt 
service structure, reducing the interest rate to 2.80%; (2) level debt service 
structure, reducing the interest rate to 2.85%, and (3) escalating debt service 
structure, reducing the interest rate to 2.88%. In all cases, Capital One will waive 
the prepayment penalty of 2%.  The Bond is currently at a rate of 3.60%.   







FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND ISSUANCE AGREEMENT 2  
April 2, 2020 


 


 
 
Brandis Tallman presented the three options at the Budget Committee meeting 
on February 19, 2020. After careful analysis and consideration, staff determined 
that the escalating debt service structure option provides the best economic result 
for the District’s current needs and goals. The Board asked Brandis Tallman to 
inquire if a lower interest rate could be approved in light of recent financial events 
and approved the General Manager to sign all required documents.  Capital One 
lowered the preferred escalating debt service option interest rate from 2.88% to 
2.78% and the revised documents are attached for Board review.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







KMTG DRAFT 
Circulated March 11, 2020 


1930770.3  11338-005  


 
 


 


 


FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND ISSUANCE AGREEMENT 


 


made by the 


 


 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


 


 


 


Dated March 1, 2020 


Relating to the  
 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(Sonoma County, California) 
Improvement District No. 1 


2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond 
(as revised March 19, 2020) 


 


 


 


 


 


 







1930770.3  11338-005  1 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND ISSUANCE AGREEMENT 


THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND ISSUANCE AGREEMENT (this “First 
Amendment”) dated March 1, 2020, is made by the Sweetwater Springs Water District, a county 
water district duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the 
State of California (the “District”). 


Recitals 


WHEREAS, the District issued its Improvement District No. 1 2013 General Obligation 
Refunding Bond (the “Bond”), in the principal amount of $7,993,000, pursuant to the Bond 
Issuance Agreement dated August 1, 2013 (the “Bond Issuance Agreement”); 


WHEREAS, Capital One Public Funding, LLC, a limited liability company duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of New York (the “Lender”), purchased the Bond and is 
the sole owner of the Bond; 


WHEREAS, in lieu of selling refunding bonds and using the proceeds of their sale to 
redeem the Bond, the District intends to amend the Bond Issuance Agreement in order to reduce 
the total amount of debt service payable by the District on the Bond and revise its principal 
amortization; 


WHEREAS, the reductions and revisions will be made with respect to the principal 
installments on the Bond that are due on and after September 1, 2021, and the amount of the 
interest installments that are payable with respect to the amounts of such principal installments; 


WHEREAS, the District will also to revise the optional redemption provisions of the Bond; 


WHEREAS, to evidence the revisions made to the terms of the Bond, the District will issue 
and deliver a revised Bond to the Lender in exchange for the outstanding Bond; 


WHEREAS, the Lender has consented to the proposed amendments to the Bond Issuance 
Agreement and has agreed to accept a revised Bond in exchange for the Bond that it currently 
owns; 


NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 


Section 1. Definitions.  For all purposes of this First Amendment and of any 
certificate, opinion, or other document herein mentioned, unless the context otherwise requires or 
unless otherwise defined herein, all defined terms shall have the meanings set forth in the Bond 
Issuance Agreement.  The Bond, as revised in accordance with the provisions of this First 
Amendment, that is to be delivered to the Lender on March 19, 2020, in exchange for the Bond 
originally delivered on August 21, 2013, is referred to herein as the “revised Bond.” 


  







1930770.3  11338-005  2 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


Section 2. Amendment to Bond Payment Schedule.  Section 3.2(B) of the Bond 
Issuance Agreement is amended to read as follows: 


(B) Date; Payments.  The revised Bond shall be dated its date of delivery 
and shall bear interest from its date to September 1, 2033.  The District shall pay 
installments of principal and interest on the revised Bond in the following amounts 
on the following dates: 


Date Principal Interest Total 
September 1, 2020 $368,000.00  $72,375.21 $440,375.21 
March 1, 2021  73,056.90 73,056.90 
September 1, 2021 296,500.00 73,056.90 369,556.90 
March 1, 2022  68,935.55 68,935.55 
September 1, 2022 306,300.00 68,935.55 375,235.55 
March 1, 2023  64,677.98 64,677.98 
September 1, 2023 316,200.00 64,677.98 380,877.98 
March 1, 2024  60,282.80 60,282.80 
September 1, 2024 323,500.00 60,282.80 383,782.80 
March 1, 2025  55,786.15 55,786.15 
September 1, 2025 330,800.00 55,786.15 386,586.15 
March 1, 2026  51,188.03 51,188.03 
September 1, 2026 339,900.00 51,188.03 391,088.03 
March 1, 2027  46,463.42 46,463.42 
September 1, 2027 437,272.80 46,463.42 483,736.22 
March 1, 2028  40,385.33 40,385.33 
September 1, 2028 450,050.20 40,385.33 490,435.53 
March 1, 2029  34,129.63 34,129.63 
September 1, 2029 463,201.10 34,129.63 497,330.73 
March 1, 2030  27,691.14 27,691.14 
September 1, 2030 476,736.10 27,691.14 504,427.24 
March 1, 2031  21,064.51 21,064.51 
September 1, 2031 490,666.80 21,064.51 511,731.31 
March 1, 2032  14,244.24 14,244.24 
September 1, 2032 505,004.40 14,244.24 519,248.64 
March 1, 2033  7,224.68 7,224.68 
September 1, 2033 519,761.00 7,224.68 526,985.68 


Interest on the Bond shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprising twelve 
30-day months.  The interest payable on September 1, 2020, was calculated based on interest at 
the rate of 3.60% per annum on the prior principal installment amounts.  Interest on the revised 
principal installment amounts (September 1, 2021, and following) is calculated at the rate of 2.78% 
per annum, with the first interest payment on September 1, 2020. 


Section 3. Amendment to Bond Form.  The form of the revised Bond is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 


  







1930770.3  11338-005  3 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


Section 4. Amendment to Optional Redemption Provisions.  Section 4.2 of the 
Bond Issuance Agreement is amended to read as follows: 


Optional Redemption.  The Bond is subject to redemption prior to its 
maturity, at the option of the District, from any source of available funds, as a whole 
on any date or in part on any September 1 (in a minimum amount of $100,000), on 
or after September 1, 2026, at the following redemption prices (computed upon the 
principal amount of the Bond to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the date 
fixed for redemption: 


Redemption Period 
(Both Dates Inclusive) 


 
Redemption Price 


September 1, 2026, through August 31, 2028 102% 
September 1, 2028, and thereafter 100 


If the Bond is optionally redeemed in part, the amount of the principal to be 
redeemed shall be applied to reduce the scheduled principal installments in inverse 
order of their payment dates.  Upon a partial redemption, the Owner shall surrender 
the Bond to the District for exchange, and the District shall execute and deliver to 
the Owner a replacement Bond in the amount of the unpaid principal thereof and 
incorporating the revised installment payment schedule. 


Section 5. Designated Costs of Issuance.  The District shall pay a fee of $18,500 to 
the District’s placement agent, Brandis Tallman LLC, and a fee of $10,000 to Kronick, Moskovitz, 
Tiedemann and Girard, a Professional Corporation, which is serving as bond counsel to the Lender 
(“Bond Counsel”).  The designated costs of issuance also include an additional fee of $10,000 that 
will be paid by the Lender to Bond Counsel. 


Section 6. Provisions of the Bond Issuance Agreement.  Except as this First 
Amendment expressly provides, every term and condition contained in the Bond Issuance 
Agreement applies to this First Amendment with the same force and effect as if the same were 
herein set forth at length, with such omissions, variations and modifications thereof as may be 
appropriate to make the same conform to this First Amendment. 


This First Amendment and all the terms and provisions herein contained form part of the 
Bond Issuance Agreement as fully and with the same effect as if all such terms and provisions had 
been set forth in the Bond Issuance Agreement.  The Bond Issuance Agreement is hereby ratified 
and confirmed and continues in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and provisions 
thereof, as amended hereby. 


Section 7. Effect of Headings.  The headings or titles of the several Sections hereof 
are solely for convenience of reference and do not affect the meaning, construction, or effect of 
this First Amendment. 


Section 8. Execution in Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 







1930770.3  11338-005  4 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


Section 9. Effective Date.  The amendments made by this First Amendment are 
effective as of March 19, 2020. 


[signature page follows] 


 







1930770.3  11338-005  Signature Page to First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has caused this First Amendment to be duly 
executed by its officers duly authorized as of the date first written above. 


 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


  


 By:          
 Ed Fortner, Jr., General Manager 


COUNTERSIGNED:  


  


By:       
      Julie A. Kenny, Secretary of the Board 


 


 
 
 


Capital One Public Funding, LLC, hereby consents to the execution of this First Amendment to 
Bond Issuance Agreement. 


 CAPITAL ONE PUBLIC FUNDING, LLC 


  


 By:          
  







1930770.3  11338-005  A-1 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


EXHIBIT A 


FORM OF REVISED BOND 


REGISTERED NO. R-1 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
(Sonoma County, California) 
Improvement District No. 1 


2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond 
(as revised March 19, 2020) 


This Bond has been designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 


Original Issue Date Original Principal Amount 


August 21, 2013 $7,993,000 


Date of Exchange 
(Reissuance) 


Revised Principal Amount 
on Date of Exchange 


March 19, 2020 $5,623,892.40 


Sweetwater Springs County Water District, a county water district duly organized and 
existing under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the “District”), 
issued its Sweetwater Springs Water District (Sonoma County, California) Improvement District 
No. 1 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond in the original principal amount stated above on 
August 21, 2013 (the “original Bond”), pursuant to a Bond Issuance Agreement dated August 1, 
2013 (the “Bond Issuance Agreement”), made by the District.  This revised Bond is issued in the 
revised principal amount stated above pursuant to the Bond Issuance Agreement as amended by 
the First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement dated March 1, 2020 (the “First Amendment 
to Bond Issuance Agreement”), made by the District.  The Bond Issuance Agreement and the First 
Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement were each made by the District and the original Bond 
and this revised Bond were each issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of California, 
including the statutory authority of Articles 9 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 
of the California Government Code (the “Law”).  Pursuant to Government Code section 53555, 
this Bond will be exchanged for the original bond on the date of exchange stated above. 


The District, for value received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted to and promises to 
pay to CAPITAL ONE PUBLIC FUNDING, LLC, or registered assigns, the installments of 
principal and interest in the amounts and on the dates stated below: 


  







1930770.3  11338-005  A-2 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


 


Date Principal Interest Total 
September 1, 2020 $368,000.00  $72,375.21 $440,375.21 
March 1, 2021  73,056.90 73,056.90 
September 1, 2021 296,500.00 73,056.90 369,556.90 
March 1, 2022  68,935.55 68,935.55 
September 1, 2022 306,300.00 68,935.55 375,235.55 
March 1, 2023  64,677.98 64,677.98 
September 1, 2023 316,200.00 64,677.98 380,877.98 
March 1, 2024  60,282.80 60,282.80 
September 1, 2024 323,500.00 60,282.80 383,782.80 
March 1, 2025  55,786.15 55,786.15 
September 1, 2025 330,800.00 55,786.15 386,586.15 
March 1, 2026  51,188.03 51,188.03 
September 1, 2026 339,900.00 51,188.03 391,088.03 
March 1, 2027  46,463.42 46,463.42 
September 1, 2027 437,272.80 46,463.42 483,736.22 
March 1, 2028  40,385.33 40,385.33 
September 1, 2028 450,050.20 40,385.33 490,435.53 
March 1, 2029  34,129.63 34,129.63 
September 1, 2029 463,201.10 34,129.63 497,330.73 
March 1, 2030  27,691.14 27,691.14 
September 1, 2030 476,736.10 27,691.14 504,427.24 
March 1, 2031  21,064.51 21,064.51 
September 1, 2031 490,666.80 21,064.51 511,731.31 
March 1, 2032  14,244.24 14,244.24 
September 1, 2032 505,004.40 14,244.24 519,248.64 
March 1, 2033  7,224.68 7,224.68 
September 1, 2033 519,761.00 7,224.68 526,985.68 


Interest on this Bond is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprising twelve 30-day 
months.  The interest payable on September 1, 2020, is calculated based on interest at the rate of 
3.60% per annum on the prior principal installment amounts.  Interest on the revised principal 
installment amounts (September 1, 2021, and following) is calculated at the rate of 2.78% per 
annum, with the first interest payment on September 1, 2020.  The principal and interest 
installments on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America by wire 
transfer on each payment date to the registered owner hereof (in accordance with the terms of the 
Bond Issuance Agreement. 


Reference is hereby made to the Bond Issuance Agreement, the First Amendment to Bond 
Issuance Agreement, and to the Law for a description of the terms on which this Bond is issued 
and to be issued and the rights of the registered owner of this Bond.  All the terms of the Bond 
Issuance Agreement and the First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement and the Law are 
hereby incorporated herein and constitute a contract between the District and the registered owner 
from time to time of this Bond.  The registered owner of this Bond, by its acceptance hereof, 







1930770.3  11338-005  A-3 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


consents and agrees to all the provisions of the Bond Issuance Agreement and the First Amendment 
to Bond Issuance Agreement . 


This Bond is subject to redemption by the District as a whole on any date or in part (by 
ratably reducing the remaining scheduled principal installments) on any Interest Payment Date, 
from funds received by the District due to a casualty loss or governmental taking of the Water 
System or portions thereof by eminent domain proceedings, under the circumstances and upon the 
conditions and terms prescribed in the Bond Issuance Agreement, at a redemption price equal to 
the sum of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption, without premium. 


This Bond is also subject to redemption prior to its maturity, at the option of the District, 
from any source of available funds, as a whole on any date or in part on any September 1 (in a 
minimum amount of $100,000), on or after September 1, 2026, at the following redemption prices 
(computed upon the principal amount of this Bond to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the 
date fixed for redemption: 


Redemption Period 
(Both Dates Inclusive) 


 
Redemption Price 


September 1, 2026, through August 31, 2028 102% 
September 1, 2028, and thereafter 100 


If this Bond is optionally redeemed in part, the amount of the principal to be redeemed 
shall be applied to reduce the scheduled principal installments in inverse order of their payment 
dates.  Upon a partial redemption, the Owner shall surrender this Bond to the District for exchange, 
and the District shall execute and deliver to the Owner a replacement Bond in the amount of the 
unpaid principal thereof and incorporating the revised installment payment schedule. 


Notice of redemption of this Bond shall be given by first class mail not less than thirty (30) 
days nor more than sixty (60) days before the redemption date to the registered owner hereof, 
subject to and in accordance with provisions of the Bond Issuance Agreement.  If notice of 
redemption has been duly given as aforesaid and money for the payment of the above-described 
redemption price is held by the District or its escrow agent, then this Bond shall, on the redemption 
date designated in such notice, become due and payable at the above-described redemption price; 
and from and after the date so designated, interest on this Bond shall cease to accrue and the 
registered owner of this Bond shall have no rights with respect hereto except to receive payment 
of the redemption price hereof. 


If an event of default, as defined in the Bond Issuance Agreement, shall occur, the principal 
of this Bond may be declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the 
effect provided in the Bond Issuance Agreement, except that the Bond Issuance Agreement 
provides that in certain events such declaration and its consequences shall be rescinded under the 
circumstances as provided therein. 


This Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof, in person or by its attorney duly 
authorized in writing, at the offices of the District, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations 
and upon payment of the charges provided in the Bond Issuance Agreement, and upon surrender 







1930770.3  11338-005  A-4 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


and cancellation of this Bond.  Upon such transfer a new fully registered Bond for the same 
aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange herefor. 


The District may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof 
for all purposes, and the District shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 


The rights and obligations of the District and of the registered owner of this Bond may be 
modified or amended at any time in the manner, to the extent, and upon terms provided in the Bond 
Issuance Agreement, which provide, in certain circumstances, for modifications and amendments 
without the consent of or notice to the registered owner of Bond. 


It is hereby certified and recited that any and all acts, conditions, and things required to 
exist, to happen, and to be performed, precedent to and in the incurring of the indebtedness 
evidenced by this Bond, and in the issuing of this Bond, do exist, have happened, and have been 
performed in due time, form and manner, as required by the Constitution and statutes of the State 
of California; that the total amount of indebtedness of the District, including the amount of this 
Bond, does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution and the statutes of the State of 
California; and that this Bond is not in excess of the amount permitted to be issued under the Bond 
Issuance Agreement. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District, has caused this Bond to be signed by its President, to be countersigned by the Secretary 
of the Board, all as of the date stated above. 


 


 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


  


 By:          
 President of the Board of Directors 


COUNTERSIGNED:  


  


By:       
      Secretary to the Board of Directors 


 


 
  







1930770.3  11338-005  A-5 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


ASSIGNMENT 


For value received the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto 
_____________________ the within Bond and do(es) hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
___________________ attorney, to transfer the same on the bond register of the District, with full 
power of substitution in the premises. 


Dated: _______________ 
____________________________________________________ 
NOTE:  The signature(s) to this Assignment must correspond with 
the name(s) on the face of the within Bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever. 


 
Signature(s) Guaranteed by: 


____________________________________________________ 
NOTE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor 
institution (being banks, stock brokers, savings and loan 
associations, and credit unions with membership in an approved 
signature guarantee medallion program pursuant to Securities and 
Exchange Commission Rule 17A(d)15. 


 
Social Security Number, Tax  
Identification Number, or other  
identifying number of Assignee: __________________________________________ 


 
 


  







1930770.3  11338-005  A-6 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


LEGAL OPINION 


The following is a true copy of the opinion rendered by Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann 
& Girard, a Professional Corporation, in connection with the issuance of, and dated as of the date 
of the original delivery of, the Bond described therein.  A signed copy is on file in my office. 


 
         
Secretary to the Board 


KRONICK, MOSKOVITZ, TIEDEMANN & GIRARD 
A Professional Corporation 
400 Capitol Mall, 27th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814-4417 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 
 
Capital One Public Funding, LLC  
Melville, New York 


Re: Sweetwater Springs Water District (Sonoma County, California) 
Improvement District No. 1 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond 
(as revised March 19, 2020) 


Ladies and Gentlemen: 


We have acted as bond counsel to Capital One Public Funding, LLC (the “Lender”), in 
connection with the execution by the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) of the 
First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement dated March 1, 2020, revising the terms of its 
Improvement District No. 1 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bond (the “Bond”), issued on 
August 21, 2013, in the original principal amount of $7,993,000, and the issuance of a revised 
Bond in the revised principal amount of $5,623,892.40 (the “revised Bond”) that the District will 
exchange with the Lender for the Bond originally delivered to the Lender.  In such capacity, we 
have examined such law and such certified proceedings, certifications, and other documents as we 
have deemed necessary to render this opinion. 


Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the certified 
proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without 
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 


Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, under existing law: 


1. The revised Bond has been duly authorized and executed by the District and is a 
valid and binding general obligation of the District, payable from any available funds of the 
District, including the revenues of the District’s water system, although any tax for the payment 
of the revised Bond is limited to annual taxes to be levied upon and collected from property within 
Improvement District No. 1 of the District (the “Improvement District”). 







1930770.3  11338-005  A-7 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement 


2. All taxable property in the territory of the Improvement District is subject to ad 
valorem taxation without limitation regarding rate or amount (except certain personal property that 
is taxable at limited rates) to pay the revised Bond.  The County of Sonoma is required by law to 
include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest coming due on the revised Bond to the 
extent that necessary funds are not provided from other sources. 


3. Interest on the revised Bond is excludable from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum 
tax.  The opinion set forth in the preceding sentence is subject to the condition that the District 
comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that must be 
satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the revised Bond in order that the interest thereon be, and 
continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The District has 
covenanted to comply with all such requirements.  Failure to comply with certain of such 
requirements may cause interest on the revised Bond to be included in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the revised Bond.   


4. Interest on the revised Bond is exempt from State of California personal income 
taxation. 


5. The revised Bond is eligible and the District has designated it as a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 


The rights of the owner of the revised Bond and the enforceability thereof are limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 
rights generally, and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity.   


We express no opinion regarding tax consequences arising with respect to the revised Bond 
other than as expressly set forth herein. 


This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or 
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our 
attention or any changes in law that may hereafter occur. 


 Very truly yours, 


  


 KRONICK, MOSKOVITZ, TIEDEMANN & GIRARD, 
A Professional Corporation 


 





		Item V-E - Staff Report Restructuring of the Capital One Bond

		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020



		Item V-E.1 First Amendment to Bond Issuance Agreement Updated






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Lease Renewal with FerrellGas
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Renewal of the Lease 
with FerrellGas and give direction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Sweetwater Springs Water District has leased the office space at 17081 Hwy. 116, 
Suite B since 1999.  The lease has been extended several times since 1999.  
FerrellGas has been a good landlord during the term of the current lease.  There is a 
provision in the existing lease to renew the agreement with sufficient notice.  In 
Paragraph 20 of the original lease, it states “Lessee shall have the option to renew 
this Lease for one (1) additional term of three years upon the same terms and 
conditions as the Primary Term by providing at least sixty (60) days’ written notice 
prior to the end of the then current term.”  I recommend the Board approve the 
renewal of the lease as stated to extend the existing lease until July 1, 2023, at Two 
Thousand Six Hundred Dollars and Thirty-One Cents ($2,606.31) monthly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020






 
 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 2, 2020   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.  Annual Reports were completed for GV and 
MR.  Diversion reports were completed for GV and MR.  


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 12,827 units (29.4 AF Monte 


Rio cycle), and production (calculated as running twelve-month average) was 44.2 AF.  
Compared to one year ago, sales were lower, and production was lower (29.0 AF and 41.3 
AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference for the combined 
systems; the water loss trend was up this month (20.5%).  Looking at the data over the last 
ten years, water production has dropped approximately 29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  
The water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in the 15-20% range.  Much of the 
production and water loss drop can be attributed to the capital projects funded by 
Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to the drought public education; it's 
unlikely historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In March, we had three total leak repairs with 15 hours on them.  Two leaks were 


in Monte Rio and one leak was in Rio Nido.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is less 
leaks and less person-hours compared to the prior month and less leaks and less person-
hours compared to March one year ago (5 and 66).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total leak line as well.  For Calendar Year 2019, total leaks were 78, 
down from 105 from 2018.  Looking at the leaks chart over the last ten years, we've come 
down from around 300 leaks per year to under 80 - quite a difference and very noticeable 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 7 
April 2, 2020 
 


in what the field crews are able to do - address ongoing issues with in-house projects 
instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  November rainfall was 1.23”, which is lower than the long-term 


average month and keeps the yearly total (14.84”) below the long-term annual average.  
Our driest year on record was 1977 and we had 12.26” total by the end of March.        


  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were three in-house construction projects in 


March: 
• A meter relocation and new meter box installed at 14227 Laurel Place. (GV).   Nine 


and three quarters person-hours were spent on the project.  
• Maintenance on hydrants and valves determined from flushing. (MR).  Forty seven 


and three quarter hours were spent on the project. 
• New construction on one inch service at 11740 Laurel Dell Avenue (MR).  Forty six 


and one half hours were spent on this project. 
• The three projects totaled 104 hours. 


 
6.   Labor Negotiations:    Gregory Ramirez with IDEC, Laura Strand with Local 39 and I 


have been communicating and have postponed negotiations until May due to the 
uncertainties and health concerns around the Covid-19 Pandemic. 
 


7.   Lower Russian River Community Action Group Governance Meeting:  There was a 
remote meeting on March 21st.  The regular meeting on March 26th was cancelled. 


 
8.   17448 River Lane Update:  Paige McDonell is resigning from Russian River Recreation 


and Parks District. 
 


9. Grant(s) Update:  Attended mandatory meeting of the Sonoma County Community 
Development Committee remotely on March 18th to consider our Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) application for the FY 2021 CIP (Old River Rd and Woodland Ave. 
line replacement).  The CDC and CDC staff recommended full funding request for Design 
and Planning of $115,920.00.  Final funding decisions will occur at their April 15th meeting 
unless the meeting is postponed due to the Pandemic.  Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (DWSRF) staff informed the GM that Guerneville did NOT qualify for disadvantaged 
status.  I replied with Census and CDBG data that confirms the disadvantaged status. 


 
10.   Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for March, FY 2020.   


 
          


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 7 
April 2, 2020 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 7 
April 2, 2020 
 







 
 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 7 
April 2, 2020 
 


 


Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 FY21+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2021 CIP Planning


•        2021 CIP Design


•        2019 CIP Construction Ends


   Labor Negotiations


    Strategic Planning Nov-19


    Cost of Service Study Mar-20


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-20


Water Rights SCWA 
P t tEmergency Response Plan Review


Building Lease
•        Lease Renewal Aug-20


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt 


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone





		Meeting Date: April 2, 2020



